CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Strategic Planning Board** held on Wednesday, 6th October, 2010 at Council Chamber - Town Hall, Macclesfield, SK10 1DX

PRESENT

Councillor H Davenport (Chairman)
Councillor J Hammond (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors A Arnold, D Brown, M Hollins, D Hough, J Macrae, C G Thorley, G M Walton, S Wilkinson and J Wray

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

Mrs R Ellison (Principal Planning Officer), Mr A Fisher (Head of Planning and Housing), Mrs R Goddard (Senior Lawyer), Mrs R Kidd (Spatial Planning Manager), Mr D Malcolm (Interim Development Manager) and Mr S Molloy (Project Leader, Minerals and Waste)

47 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs R Bailey, P Edwards and B Livesley.

48 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST/PRE-DETERMINATION

Councillors D Brown and W J Macrae declared that in respect of agenda item 55 'Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing' they had pre-determined the item and therefore they left the room prior to consideration of the item.

Councillors D Brown and W J Macrae declared that in respect of agenda item 56 'Local Development Framework Core Strategy Issues and Options' they would not be participating in the debate as they did not want to Fetter their Discretion at a future Cabinet meeting where the item would be considered and which they were Members of and therefore they left the room prior to consideration of the item.

(During consideration of the following item Councillor S Wilkinson arrived to the meeting).

49 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED

That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

50 PUBLIC SPEAKING

RESOLVED

That the public speaking procedure be noted.

51 10/1005N-APPLICATION TO VARY PLANNING CONDITIONS 5 AND 6 ON PLANNING PERMISSION 7/2009/CCC/1, IN ORDER TO VARY THE DESCRIPTION OF PERMITTED WASTE AND SPECIFY A PERCENTAGE OF CONTAMINATED WASTE ALLOWED, WHITTAKERS GREEN FARM, PEWIT LANE, BRIDGEMERE FOR MR F.H. RUSHTON

The Committee considered a report (together with an oral update) regarding the above planning application.

(Councillor D Brickhill, Ward Councillor, Parish Councillor Mrs Wilson, Doddington and District Parish Council, Mr Frodsham, an objector and Mr Thornley, agent on behalf of the applicant).

RESOLVED

- 1. That the recommendation to amend condition 5 be refused as the submitted amended wording to condition 5 is considered ambiguous and does not assist to clearly define the nature of waste materials that would be acceptable for import. The existing condition, read in relation to the permitted development, is considered to provide sufficient indication of the nature of wastes that are acceptable to be imported to, processed or stored at the site.
- 2. That the recommendation to leave existing condition 6 unaltered be approved as Condition 5 makes it clear that only green garden waste shall be imported and accepted on the site. The operator should ensure that only such waste is imported. Allowing a 5% quantity of mixed waste to be imported does not accord with the requirements of condition 5 and would lead to unacceptable impacts on amenity. It is considered the current wording of condition 6 adequately allows for those incidents were contaminated material which is not green garden waste is inadvertently imported within the main body of the green garden waste.

(The decision to refuse an amendment to condition 5 was against the Officers recommendation to amend).

52 10/2251N-APPLICATION TO VARY PLANNING CONDITIONS 5 AND 6 ON PLANNING PERMISSION 7/2009/CCC/1, IN ORDER TO VARY THE DESCRIPTION OF PERMITTED WASTE AND SPECIFY A PERCENTAGE OF CONTAMINATED WASTE ALLOWED, WHITTAKERS GREEN FARM, PEWIT LANE, BRIDGEMERE FOR MR F.H. RUSHTON

The Committee considered a report (together with an oral update) regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED

1. That the recommendation to amend condition 5 be refused as the submitted amended wording to condition 5 is considered ambiguous and does not assist to

clearly define the nature of waste materials that would be acceptable for import. The existing condition, read in relation to the permitted development, is considered to provide sufficient indication of the nature of wastes that are acceptable to be imported to, processed or stored at the site.

2. That the recommendation to leave existing condition 6 unaltered be approved as Condition 5 makes it clear that only green garden waste shall be imported and accepted on the site. The operator should ensure that only such waste is imported. Allowing a 5% quantity of mixed waste to be imported does not accord with the requirements of condition 5 and would lead to unacceptable impacts on amenity. It is considered the current wording of condition 6 adequately allows for those incidents were contaminated material which is not green garden waste is inadvertently imported within the main body of the green garden waste.

(The decision to refuse an amendment to condition 5 was against the Officers recommendation to amend).

53 10/3103N-APPLICATION FOR REMOVAL OR VARIATION OF A CONDITION FOR APPROVED PLANNING PERMISSION P09/0126 - CONDITION 1 REQUIRES THAT THE DEVELOPMENT BE CARRIED OUT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROVED PLANS AND CONDITION 18 RESTRICTS ANY FUTURE INCREASE IN RETAIL FLOORSPACE AND ALSO PREVENTS INTERNAL ALTERATIONS THAT WOULD RESULT IN AN OVERALL INCREASE IN THE GROSS FLOORSPACE, SAINSBURY'S STORE/FAIRWAY SUITHOUSE, MIDDLEWICH ROAD, NANTWICH, CHESHIRE FOR SAINSBURY'S SUPERMARKETS LTD

The Committee considered a report (together with an oral update) regarding the above planning application.

Members were asked to consider an amendment to the recommendation which remained one of approval subject to the decision being delegated to the Head of Planning and Housing in order to draft a set of revised conditions and a new S106 agreement.

(Sam Ryan, agent for the applicant attended the meeting and spoke in respect of the application).

RESOLVED

That the application be approved subject to the decision being delegated to the Head of Planning and Housing in order to draft a set of revised conditions and a new S106 agreement.

54 REPORT IN RELATION TO (1) AMENDMENTS TO PLANS FOR THE **OUTLINE PLANNING APPLICATION AND SECTION 106 AGREEMENT** (2) AMENDMENTS TO CONDITIONS FOR **PLANNING** APPLICATION FOR **OUTLINE APPLICATION** P06/1001 FOR REDEVELOPMENT AND RELOCATION OF EXISTING GARDEN CENTRE FACILITIES, A1 AND A3 RETAIL UNITS, CONSTRUCTION OF CLASS C3 RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT, В1 OFFICE

DEVELOPMENT, CAR PARKING, ANCILLARY FACILITIES AND ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE AT STAPELEY WATER GARDENS, LONDON ROAD, STAPELEY

The Committee considered a report (together with an oral update) regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED

That the amendments to the application be approved as follows:-

- 1. The alteration to the plans to remove an area of land on the north side of the Stapeley Water Gardens development site for use with the outline planning application and for the related S106 agreement.
- 2. Alterations to the wording of condition 18 on the outline planning permission to require the submission of the tree survey in relation to land to the south west of the outline planning application area (i.e. part of the ecological mitigation area) prior to the commencement of development of the outline permission.
- 3. The removal of condition 19 from the outline planning permission to be issued which requires the retention of planting between the Stapeley Water Gardens development area and Peter Destapleigh Way.

(Prior to consideration of the following item Councillors D Brown and W J Macrae left the meeting and did not return).

(The meeting adjourned at 3.35pm and reconvened at 3.45pm).

55 INTERIM PLANNING STATEMENT ON AFFORDABLE HOUSING

Consideration was given to a report on the Council's Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing.

Members welcomed the report although concerns were raised in relation to the percentage of affordable housing that developers were required to build.

It was suggested by the chairman that once the economic situation improved then the percentage could be amended.

RESOLVED

- 1. That endorsement be given to the Cabinet's approval of the draft Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing (as appended to this report) for consultation purposes.
- 2. That the Board gives its agreement that it be treated as a material consideration in the determination of planning applications pending the adoption of the finalised document in such a format as may be appropriate following the consultation process.

56 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK CORE STRATEGY ISSUES AND OPTIONS

Consideration was given to a report on the Local Development Framework Core Strategy Issues and Options.

Whilst the Board was happy that the consultation stage be progressed, the following comments were made:-

- (i) Information in the earlier part of the report could be improved.
- (ii) More information on transport connections was required.
- (iii) Statistical information on pages 16 and 41 of the report was inaccurate and needed correcting.
- (iv) Lack of reference to agriculture in the report.
- (v) Mineral sites were referred to in the report, but waste sites had been omitted.

RESOLVED

That report be noted and that Cabinet be recommended to approve the Issues and Options report for the Local Development Framework Core Strategy for consultation purposes.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 5.00 pm

Councillor H Davenport (Chairman)